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AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE

RFP UB-17-W-24
Marketing, Web and Advertising for the University of Baltimore.

THE RFP IS AMENDED IN THE FOLLOWING PARTICULARS ONLY:

continued on next page…….
	TO BE COMPLETED BY THE FIRM OFFERING A PROPOSAL

	NAME AND ADDRESS OF OFFEROR

FEI Number: _________________
	SIGNATURE OF PERSON AUTHORIZED TO SIGN QUOTATION


	DATE OF QUOTATION

	
	SIGNER’S NAME AND TITLE


	TELEPHONE No.


See the list of vendors to whom a copy of the RFP has been sent, attached as a separate document.  All documents pertaining to this RFP has been posted on the University’s web page at 
http://www.ubalt.edu/about-ub/offices-and-services/procurement/information-for-merchants/current-ub-solicitations.cfm
The following questions were asked at the preproposal conference:

1.
QUESTION: 
 How does the University intend to engage and work with strategic partners for marketing and advertising?
ANSWER:  
The University intends to hire a full service agency that can provide the entire gamut of marketing and advertising services, including branding and media placement, using its own staff or subcontractors.  The contractor agency will be responsible for the work performed by its subcontractors.

2.
 QUESTION: 
How will the Economic Benefits Factor be applied to the evaluation?
ANSWER:
See RFP section 3.3.9. on page 23.  The Economic Benefits Factor is not a major evaluation factor, but will be included in the evaluation.
3.
 QUESTION: 
Does the University have an in-house staff of designers and writers?
ANSWER:
The University has an in-house marketing group that does writing, editing, web work, some videography and photography.  The Contractor will be expected to work with the University’s employees.
4.
 QUESTION: 
Is this a fixed price contract?
ANSWER:
A Fixed Price Contract is a contract which provides for a vendor price under which a vendor bears the full risk for profit or loss.  
A Time and Materials contract is a contract providing for the procurement of materials at an agreed price or services on the basis of direct labor hours at specified fixed hourly rates (which include direct and indirect labor, overhead, and profit).
The University intends to use a hybrid approach that will include aspects of a Time and Materials type of contract for marketing and advertising.  The contract will include many specific deliverables, and some more general standards and objectives.  The Contractor will be required to negotiate direct labor hours at specified fixed hourly rates, and the University may also negotiate a monthly fee for a standard set of on-going services.  The contract may also include specific fixed price task orders, where a specific deliverable(s) will be defined, a timeline established, progress payment milestones established, with a fixed price to complete the work.
5.
 QUESTION: 
Does the University have an overall plan for marketing and/or advertising?
ANSWER:
No, plans will be developed in cooperation with the successful agency.  Some of the planning work will be done internally.
6.
 QUESTION: 
How did the University handle media buys last year?
ANSWER:
The Contractor, idFive, subcontracted media buys to one of their subcontractors.  Media buys were made at the University’s direction.
7.
 QUESTION: 
Does the University have any specific goals for recruitment of international students or international advertising?
ANSWER:
Our approach to international students has been opportunistic.  International students are not a big part of our strategy.  We do regard Hispanic students to be a key audience, along with military and veteran students.
8.
 QUESTION: 
Does the University have existing market research?
ANSWER:
The University has some market research data, but not a lot.  The research is mostly project and current customer focus oriented.
9.
 QUESTION: 
Will the Contract Agency be responsible for conducting market research?
ANSWER:
No, the Contract Agency will not be responsible for conducting market research.  UB may hire others to do market research and/or demand analysis.  UB will use a separate budget for such research.  The Contract Agency should be familiar with such research and know how to apply the results of such research to marketing and advertising strategy and tactics.
10.
 QUESTION: 
Does the University have partners they want to use for research, branding, marketing or advertising?
ANSWER:
No we have not selected any contractors to do any of that work (other than the incumbent marketing and advertising contractor, who will be phased out as we on-board the new contractor).
11.
 QUESTION: 
Does the University anticipate web presence redesign?
ANSWER:
We anticipate that web presence redesign may happened in a later phase, a year or perhaps longer, after the marketing and advertising agency has been selected.  Our current design is about two-and-a half years old.
12.
 QUESTION: 
What technology is used for the current web presence?
ANSWER:
Primarily Java and Cold Fusion.  The Content Management System (CMS) is Omni Update.
13.
 QUESTION: 
Does the University anticipate a change to a new CMS?
ANSWER:
Not in the short term.  However, we do consider acquisition and implementation of a CMS to be within the scope of the contract, should the University determine that a change is in its best interest.  The University reserves the right to acquire a new CMS through the contract, or to acquire one separately (outside of the contract), if that is in its best interest.
14.
 QUESTION: 
Who currently does updates to the web pages?
ANSWER:
Updates are a shared responsibility.  Major changes, like a change to a page template, would typically be done by the Contractor.  Minor changes may be done by the UB WebMaster.  Content updates are done by designated end-users.  There are about 20 people who have access to make updates to content.
15.
 QUESTION: 
Can you clarify what information you want regarding references?
ANSWER:
Contractors must provide not less than three references.  Cited references must be able to confirm, without reservation, the contractor's ability to perform as mandated in this solicitation.  The contractor must use these references to support its proposal's viability.  Reference information must include, at a minimum, name and address of the reference firm and name, telephone number and email address of the contact person.  References should be from firms that are at least the size of the University of Baltimore.  References from other institutions of higher education are desirable. 

The University reserves the right to judge past performance of an offeror based on references.  Experience with higher education clients—particularly those in the general region—is desirable; similar or corollary experience is also acceptable.  Regarding higher education clients, whether public or private, please list:

· all that the firm currently represents
· all that the firm has worked with in the past five years
· all University System of Maryland-based institutions with which the firm has worked in the past 10 years.

The University reserves the right to take any or all of the following actions: to reject a proposal based on an unsatisfactory reference, to contact any person or persons associated with the referenced site, to request additional references or contact any known organization using the services supplied by the contractor or the contractor's subcontractors, to contact independent consulting firms for additional information about the contractor or the contractor's subcontractors, and to have members of the Evaluation Committee visit any or all of the reference sites for demonstrations.
16.
 QUESTION: 
Does the University want a detailed five-year plan?
ANSWER:
Offerors should provide a concise narrative that describes how they would propose to accomplish the objectives in the RFP (see section 2.5 and elsewhere within the RFP) within the constraints of the budget, and describe other possible creative strategic and tactical approaches.  Offerors should provide a work plan that specifies:

· processes and strategies that would be used to fulfill agreed-upon objectives

· deliverables that will be provided to the University in fulfillment of the contract

· metrics and analytics by which the University can determine return on investment for project components as well as the campaign in total

· accounting and billing processes and reporting

· project personnel, including job titles and a brief bio.

The Proposal should describe strategy and provide examples of a concrete plan.  The proposal need not include a comprehensive five year plan of tactical actions and solutions.  The Offeror may use examples of some “deliverables that will be provided to the University in fulfillment of the contract” that need not be exhaustive or comprehensive.
17.
 QUESTION: 
What types of samples do you want?
ANSWER:
The work plan must be accompanied by work samples that illustrate the offeror’s previous experience in successfully completing the required objectives in addition to focusing on innovation and institutional differentiators.  

Samples shall be submitted with the technical proposal.  

a.  Samples submitted will be at no cost to the University and become the property of the University of Baltimore upon receipt.

b.  Samples from the successful offeror will be kept as a reference of the quality of goods to be provided under the contract.  The sample will constitute an expressed warranty.

c.  Samples will be returned at the discretion of the University, but only upon specific request of the bidder.

d.  The University reserves the right to subject the samples to tests and inspections deemed necessary by the University.

e.  The University does not guarantee that samples will be returned to the bidder in the same condition they were in when submitted.

Work samples must accompany the statement of work and should demonstrate successful marketing. Failure to furnish samples and sample information may result in the rejection of your bid.
18.
 QUESTION: 
What Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system does the University use?
ANSWER:
SalesForce.  Contractor expertise in use of the tool is desirable.
19.
 QUESTION: 
Would it be correct to say that the contract will not be about branding and “positioning”, but is essentially for advertising and web campaigns to generate student enrollment? 
ANSWER: Yes, that is the primary focus, but any new agency partner will assist in translating new branding and positioning into any subsequent advertising and marketing efforts. As developing new creative will take time, we’re prepared to continue using some existing creative until the new agency has been fully on boarded. 
 
20.
 QUESTION: 
Where do your students come from now, and where do you want them to come from?
ANSWER:
Approximately 90% of our students are from Maryland. The other 10% are Out of State students and are mostly law school students (the Angelos School of Law handles most of its own marketing and advertising).  Historically we attract a lot of transfer students from local community colleges.  We would like to attract more students from Montgomery County and Prince George’s County, especially Hispanic students.  We would also like to expand out on-line courses, especially for graduate students.  We do not have residence halls, so we do not have a sizeable or a traditional freshman class.  The average age of our students is about 30 years old.
21.
 QUESTION: 
How would you measure success after one year?
ANSWER:
Connecting activities to UB goals, including cost, activities.  Historically we have not done a good job of measuring effectiveness and outcomes.  How do tactics and activities drive enrollment?  We need to look at the whole equation – conversion from prospect to enrollment.  
22.
 QUESTION: 
Do we have access to “street teams”?
ANSWER:
Not per se; we do have outreach to high schools
23.
 QUESTION: 
What is the role of the Office of Admissions? Do you hold open houses?
ANSWER:
Admissions does outreach to high schools, and conducts open houses as well as information sessions for specific programs or audiences.  We are looking at information flow and the use of our CRM; we need to use it more aggressively and more successfully.  We also need to get on top of the recruitment cycle.  We need to plan the work and work the plan, get out the right communications.  In addition to growing enrollment, one of our main goals is increasing first-term retention.  
24.
 QUESTION: 
What is the measure of students in the pipeline?  Is admissions calling the students?  Or do they depend on advertising?
ANSWER:
To date, we have mostly been reactive.  We need to be much more proactive and engage in more outreach.
25.
 QUESTION: 
Will branding and marketing be part of the contract, or just advertising?
ANSWER:
Branding needs to be aligned to the strategic plan, which is being developed now.  The strategic plan will inform our strategy.  Reinforcing any new branding (once it has been developed) and marketing will be part of the contract.  
26.
 QUESTION: 
Will you continue to build on the current logo and branding?
ANSWER:
We need to do the research.  If you are asking, will Knowledge That Works continue to be the key message for the future?  The answer is that I do not know.  We need to do the research.
27.
 QUESTION: 
What is working and what is not working?
ANSWER:
Yield events have been successful.  Our advertising has been pretty good, but is not cohesive, not holistic.  Historically, marketing was not linked to programs or enrollment.  We want them to be more cohesive.
28.
 QUESTION: 
What does it mean to be a key partner in Baltimore?
ANSWER:
We say, “the city is our campus” and there is an audience for that.  Our Centers (Schaefer Center, Jacob France Institute, Center for Families, Children and the Courts, the Law Clinic) and the work they do is important for Baltimore and benefits the city.  But we are not good at “tying the bow” and designing a holistic communication strategy out of it.
29.
 QUESTION: 
Will the Contractor be responsible for marketing and advertising to donors?
ANSWER:
No, marketing and advertising to donors is handled by Institutional Advancement, and uses a separate budget and campaign for that.  However, there may be some tie-in.
30.
 QUESTION: 
When does the University want the work to launch?
ANSWER:
We expect to on-board the new contractor in August.  
31.
 QUESTION: 
Do you want a specific media buy plan?
ANSWER:
No, we do not need a flow chart of media buys or anything that specific.  What we want to see is your strategy, experience, and general planning for media buys.
32.
 QUESTION: 
Is experience with other institutions of higher education desirable?
ANSWER:
Yes, but we are also open to firms that have other types of experience, but it should translate to our goals and challenges.  Just driving revenue is probably not enough. The agency needs to demonstrate specific strategies and results around customer acquisition. 
33.
 QUESTION: 
Do you have statistics on conversion of prospects?
ANSWER:
Generally, our prospect to enrolled student conversion rate ranges between eight to 11 percent, depending on audience. 
34.
 QUESTION: 
What other Universities do you use as a model?
ANSWER:
Some models might include Temple, Ryerson, and Elon.
35.
 QUESTION: 
Do you want a “dashboard” for conversion data?
ANSWER:
As long as the dashboard represents progress on the overall strategy as opposed to a snapshot of any particular point in time, a dashboard is fine. 
36.
 QUESTION: 
How will the financial proposal be evaluated?
ANSWER:
The separate price/financial volume of each qualified proposal will be distributed to the Financial Evaluation Committee.  The committee will examine the proposals to be sure they include fixed hourly rates for the various skills/positions and that the price information is complete, and based on the budget.  The financial information from the form for price proposals will be used to establish a financial ranking (from lowest to highest).  
The budget is provided in the RFP, not so much to control cost, but to convey a realistic estimate of what we intend to spend.  The financial proposal should describe how the funds will be used efficiently and effectively to accomplish the marketing and advertising goals and objectives: How can you help us economize, how can you help us be more efficient and effective?

37.
 QUESTION: 
Do you have the current MBE forms and certifications?
ANSWER:
See the revised MBE Attachments, forms and certifications, attached as a separate document.
38.
 QUESTION: 
Do you want to see resumes for the entire staff?
ANSWER:
No, you need to submit resumes only for the principal account manager, creative director, key media person and any other critical staff. 
39.
 QUESTION: 
What would you like the relationship to be like?
ANSWER:
We anticipate weekly meetings, many of which can be virtual, but some will need to be face-to-face.  We want a bi-annual update of what we have done and its effectiveness as well as its impact on enrollment.  Part of that presentation will be for senior management.
40.
QUESTION:
Are there specific quantitative enrollment goals?

ANSWER:  
The University has seen declining enrollments over the last five to six years. Fall 2016 enrollment was at 5,983, and moving forward, our goal is modest growth between two to three percent each year for the next two to three years.

41.
QUESTION:
Does the University of Baltimore only target the Baltimore DMA or does it reach throughout all of MD, other states, etc? 
ANSWER:
While the primary target is the Baltimore DMA, we also have prospects in surrounding regions such as Northern Virginia, D.C., Southern Pennsylvania and Delaware.
42.
QUESTION:
On page 8 of the RFP you mention “a diverse population” and that the overall population of University of Baltimore is 54% minority, can you define what races make up this 54%?

ANSWER:  
Approximate percentages: 

African American: 40%

Asian: 4%

Hispanic: 4%

Multi race: 3%

Unknown: 3%

43.
QUESTION:
You mention on page 9 that idfive is the currently performing marketing work for the university, are they able to compete on this RFP?

ANSWER:
They are able to but to our knowledge have chosen not to do so.

44.
QUESTION:  Would the University of Baltimore consider the ability to take the marketing leads generated by a new marketing partner, tracking from inquiry to student enrolled, a value add and drive greater consideration for that company in this RFP?

ANSWER:
We’re currently conducting this kind of tracking internally, but any additional insight would be welcome, particularly as it relates to attribution analysis. We would like the agency to be able to strategize on how to use resulting data to best move prospects through the recruitment funnel. 

45.
QUESTION:
What is the typical percentage breakdown of the budget between Labor and Media Buys? (ex. 40% of budget goes to labor and 60% goes to Media)

ANSWER:
We’d like labor costs to represent between 18 and 25 percent.

46.
QUESTION:
Does the internal team at the University of Baltimore handle all Social Media executions and community management?
ANSWER:
Our internal team handles all organic social media management and works with the current agency to co-manage paid advertising. 

47.
QUESTION:
Your website lists Facebook, Twitter, LinkedIn, Instagram and YouTube as UB social networks, are there any others? 

ANSWER:
Snapchat

48.
QUESTION:
What are the University of Baltimore’s policies about community management such as responsive messaging to user questions/comments on social profiles?

ANSWER:
We will respond to user questions when appropriate.

49.
QUESTION:
Will the University provide a pool of prospective talent (instructors or students) for consideration to use in any creative assets developed?  Or would the University prefer to use real talent to play the roles of students, instructors or administrators the creative require?

ANSWER:
We use real UB faculty, staff, students and alumni in our advertising.

50.
QUESTION:
How long of a lead-time would the production team need, to obtain permission and clearance to shoot on the campus should the creative calls for it?

ANSWER:  
We would need at least a week’s lead time. 

END OF AMENDMENT ONE

ALL OTHER SPECIFICATIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS REMAIN THE SAME.

ALL OFFERORS MUST ACKNOWLEDGE THE RECEIPT OF ALL AMENDMENTS ISSUED.
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